Draft RFP Questions and Answers Log- Cargo Mission

	QUESTION

NUMBERS
	QUESTIONS and ANWERS

	 1
	Question A:  How will cargo integration interface with mission integration?

	
	Answer:  The J-1 Statements of Work (SOWs) of both the Mission Integration Contract (MIC) and the Cargo Mission Contract (CMC) Draft RFPs,describe interfaces with other contracts, organizations, NASA teams, or products or reference applicable documents that provide interface information.  The MIC identifies ISS Program requirements documents, meetings, and teams that include inputs and participation from the ISS community at large, including Cargo Mission representatives and payload representatives from the NASA Payloads Office.  The Draft RFPs reference the Station Program Implementation Plans that describe interfaces from the perspective of functions and processes.  SPIP volumes 1 (Station Program Management Plan) and 2 (Program Planning and Manifesting) are applicable to the MIC, and volumes 3 (Cargo Analytical Integration) and 6 (Cargo Physical Integration) are applicable to or referenced in the CMC.  

Additional text has been added to section 3.0 and 3.1 of the Cargo Mission J-1 SOW to clarify the interfaces between the Cargo Mission contract and the Program Integration and Control and the MIC.  Section 3.0 and the beginning of 3.1 have been modified as shown in Attachment 1 (Added text in yellow; existing references highlighted in blue)

In general, the NASA Payloads Office integrates the payload customer data and provides integrated inputs to the Mission Integration and Cargo Mission through the processes and products identified in DRFP Section J-1 SOWs and the listed SPIPs.  

	 
	Question B:  How will both interface with payload integration? 

	
	Answer:  In general, the NASA Payloads Office integrates the payload customer data and provides integrated inputs to the ISS Program through the processes and products identified in the listed SPIPs and the MIC and CMC RFP Section J-1 SOWs.  In addition to the SPIPs specifically referenced in the response to question 1 (above), SPIP Volume 1, Annex Z: ISSP Research Program Plan; Volume 4:  Payload Engineering Integration; Volume 7: Training; Volume 8: Increment Execution Preparation; and Volume 9: Real-Time Operations provide information on Payload roles, responsibilities, interfaces and processes at the management, technical, and operations levels. 

The NASA Payloads Office functions as the interface between the Payload community and the ISS Program, including MIC and CMC, and has specific contracts to perform the payload functions.  Some of the contract functions of the payload community are implemented through the ISS Payload Integration Contract (IPIC, Contract Number NAS9-02099), which was awarded late in 2002 and is scheduled  to end late in 2004, or late 2005 if the 1 year extension is exercised.  The contract includes payload analyses, engineering, and integration; payload planning training, and operations support; and payload mission integration.  A new Payload Mission Contract will be competed for the post IPIC payload work.

	2
	Question:  Section B, Paragraph B.1:  Clarify the reference to Calendar Year in Section B.  It appears that only Contract Year data is required per the Tables on Page 2 in Section B.  Should the Calendar Year reference be changed to Contract Year?

	
	Answer:  A change has been made to reference contract year instead of calendar year in the final RFP.  The words have changed from:  "A calendar year breakdown of the cost and fee summarized….", to: "A contract year breakdown of the cost and fee summarized…."

	 3
	Question:  Section L, Paragraph L.14:  During it discussion of small/small disadvantaged business subcontracting goals at the 3/7/03 Pre-proposal Conference, the Government addressed disabled veteran owned subcontracting (1%) as part of veteran owned subcontracting (1%).  Will the Government please clarify the veteran owned and disabled veteran owned subcontracting goal(s)?  Are disabled veteran owned businesses part of the 1% veteran owned goal, or is there now a separate 1% goal for disabled veteran owned businesses?

	
	Answer:  The Veteran Owned Small Business goal of 1% and the Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Small Business goal of 1% are separate goals.  The dollars placed with a Service-Disabled Veteran Owned Small Business can also be counted under Veteran Owned Small Business category.

	4
	Question:  Article H-9, Paragraph C states that "the government will authorize the use of property identified in Attachment J-1 for commercial purposes upon determining that there is available capacity and that such use is consistent with the interests of the government."  Will the Government provide further definition of commercial use "consistent with the interests of the government?"

	
	Answer:  Article H-9 has been updated.  Specific language is changed from: “…there is available capacity and that such use is consistent with the interests of the government.” to:  “…there is available capacity and that such use is in the government’s interest.”  Such determination will be made on a case by case basis.

	5 
	Question:  Article H-9, Paragraph G(7) states "the contractor shall obtain, at its own expense, insurance to cover this liability."  Will the Government consider the insurance obtained by the contractor an allowable cost?

	
	Answer:  No. 


	 6
	Question:  Article H-9, Paragraph G(7) states that the general aggregate liability coverage shall be a minimum of $5M.  Will the Government consider reducing the amount of general aggregate liability coverage to the commercially standard amount of $1M?

	
	Answer:  The amount of $5M stated in the clause will remain unchanged.  The Government has considered a reduced amount, however, based on the scope of work of this contract and the dollar value of items associated with this contract the Government finds the $5M amount reasonable and appropriate for general aggregate liability coverage in accordance with this clause. 

	7 
	Question:  Article H-9, Paragraph G(8) states that commercial customers will be required to sign waivers releasing the Government from “liability for any damage caused by the government action or inaction.”  Will the Government consider revising this requirement to exclude from the waivers damage resulting from willful negligence of the Government?

	
	Answer:  The clause will not be changed.



	 8
	Question:  Section J-1, Paragraph 1.1.1.3:  The ISS MIS technical interface description is TBD.  Please provide this information as soon as possible.  This definition is critical to finalization of the contractor's side of this interface.

	
	Answer:  The following text will be added to the Final RFP:

“The Management Information System (MIS) is a web-based data repository designed to keep ISSP and SSP management and personnel aware of the most current technical, financial, workforce, schedules, and operational information, including issues and risks, MIS links ISSP and SSP core business issues and goals with the technical aspects of the Program.  To accomplish this, ISSP and SSP managers will identify contractor provided financial planning, cost, workforce data, schedules, metrics, technical performance and other contractor provided information to be linked to the MIS.  The contractor provided information will be a subset of data that is required by the Cargo Mission contract in existing DRDs.  The contractor shall coordinate with NASA to identify which data shall be linked to the MIS; to identify and implement the mechanisms for linking this data to the MIS; to identify and implement changes to the DRDs with contractor defined formats, to provide compatibility to the MIS; and to maintain the DRDs electronically in such a manner as to support electronic linkages to the MIS. 

	 9
	Question:   Section L, Table L-10:  Proposal Page Limitations, states a limit of 5 pages for the raft WBS Dictionary to be submitted with the proposal.  DRD C-PC-04 and SOW Section J-1, Paragraph 1.2.1.3 contain requirements that would require significantly more pages for the WBS dictionary.  Is the 5-page limitation correct?  Also, please provide the current ISSP WBS as soon as possible.  The mapping of the CM WBS to the ISSP WBS is critical to finalization of the M WBS, which drives many areas of proposal development.  Release with the final RFP is considered too late.

	
	Answer:  Section L has been updated to “no limit” for the draft WBS dictionary.  A preliminary mapping of the Cargo Mission SOW to the proposed ISSP WBS has been posted in the technical library.  The proposed ISSP WBS changes are under review (Reference SSCN 7621).

	10 
	Question:  Section L, Paragraph L.14A:  MA7 defines the requirement for commercialization of government provided hardware processing facilities.  Does this requirement only apply to the facilities listed in Appendix 9 (Government Furnished Facilities)?  

	
	Answer:  Yes, the only facilities that are available to be provided to the offeror are identified in Appendix 9.  These were the only ones considered for commercialization opportunities.

	 11
	Question:  Section L, Paragraph L.16:  Criteria for the Past Performance Volume requests copies of several items be included as part of this volume (E.g. 5 years of OSHA logs, certification letters from insurance carriers, and QMS certifications).  Are these items to be included as an appendix and excluded from the 15-page count restriction for this volume?   

	
	Answer:  Yes, the Final RFP will be changed to include these items as an appendix to the Past Performance Volume and exclude from the page count.  

	 12
	Question:  Section L, Paragraph L.17:  RFP (page 36) state "If subcontractor data is considered proprietary, submit the data in an separate sealed envelope; however, it must be submitted through the prime offeror.:  Is there an alternate method of submittal, as some subcontractors will not release proprietary rate data to the prime and will only deliver it directly to the Contracting Officer?

	
	Answer:  No.  The Government will only accept proposals from prime offerors.  The sealed envelope method for protecting subcontractor proprietary information suggested in the RFP has been successfully used in the past.  

	 13
	Question:  Section L, Paragraph L.14A:  Will the Government include women-owned small businesses (WOSB) in its SDB goal, or is the SDB goal just for minority-owned businesses?  If WOSBs are included in the SDB goal, does this also include non-minority owned WOSBs?

	
	Answer:  The Women-owned Business category includes all categories of small women-owned business firms, including minority owned women businesses. Small Disadvantaged Business firms include those minority businesses, including minority women-owned businesses that are SDB certified. Only SDB Certified minority women-owned small businesses can be counted in the SDB category.

	14
	Question:  Section L, Paragraph L.17:  Are EPM files to be provided by Contract Year (CY) only?  Is there a requirement for a GFY file?

	
	Answer:  WAS:  Yes.  The contract year matches the contract fiscal year because after the first 9 months the Contract Years (CY) will match the Government Fiscal Years.  

REVISED 4/29/03:  Yes.  The contract year matches the government fiscal year because after the first 9 months they are the same.

	15
	Question:  Section L, Paragraph L.17:  The EPM Instructions, under Format states "The pricing model should be designed to facilitate changes to source data such as direct labor hours and rates and be sophisticated enough to compute the total impact of various changes both to cost and price."  For example; the model must be able to compute the cost and price impact of 1) increasing (or decreasing) the number of Engineer I full time equivalent staff..."  We are assuming that, rather than directly manipulating labor hours, the EPM should be constructed to evaluate changes to either FTE inputs (which would then be converted to hours by the EPM) or changes to rates.  The previous wording implies that changes to labor hours may be introduced directly, which would break the linkage between the technical resource summary inputs (in FTEs) and the LCT module output in hours.  Please clarify the intent of the EPM requirements so we can be sure the EPM is properly constructed.

	
	Answer:  Ideally, if all the work is to be completed by the prime, the EPM should flow a change in the FTEs on the Technical Resources Summary Template (TRST) right thru to the Primes Cost Summary Template.  However, we understand that in a teaming arrangement this may not be possible.  The prime and subcontractors must make their EPMs as complete as possible.  Since subcontractors are not required to prepare a TRST, changes to a subcontracts EPM may be made on the Labor Conversion Template, which will be combined with the Labor Pricing Template in the final RFP.

	16
	Question:  Section L, Paragraph L.17:  Technical Resources Summary Template requirements state to "Label the columns at the top of this template with each "R"…Bidders conference data further clarified that the pricing templates subsequent to the TRST (as shown in the diagram of the EPM on page 39) are required at the second SOW level (1.0, 2.0......).  Is this correct?

	
	Answer:  No, this is not correct. The Technical Resources Summary Template (TRST) will be changed in the Final RFP.  Please read the instructions in the Final RFP.

	17
	Question:  Section L, Paragraph L.17:  Labor Pricing Template:  Please define what is required in the "narrative basis of estimates" for this template, as compared with the Basis of Estimate provided in the Table of Resources as described on page 28 of Section L for Volume I, Part 2.

	
	Answer:  Narrative basis of estimate for the Labor Pricing Template is required to address only data not included elsewhere.  Minimum items that you should address in this narrative are your methodology for estimating incumbent personnel retention, if proposed, and direct labor rates. This will be clarified in the Final RFP.

	18
	Question:  Section L, Paragraph L.14A:  The Contracting Officer's assessment of appropriate subcontracting goals for the basic period of performance (4 3/4 years) of this acquisition, expressed as a percentage of total contract value (including fee), is as follows:  Total Small Business (SB) goal 19%.  Note 1 Includes SB, SDB, WOB, and HUB Zone  Is it the Government's intention that the 19% SB goal will not include the 1% VOSB goal and the 1% HBCU/MI goal? 

	
	Answer:  No. [The area of text in question is actually found in section L.14 A MANAGEMENT APPROACH, subsection MA8(a)].  The Government intends for the Veteran Owned Small Business (VOSB) Goal and the HBCU/MI Goal to also count toward the total small business goal of 19%.  Each Small business category (SDB, Hubzone, WOB, Veteran owned, Service Disabled veteran owned, and HBCU/MI) is a subset of the small business goal.  The goal for each category is a separate goal.  The footnotes in Section L.14A, subsection MA8(a) will be corrected  as will contract clause H.4 in the Final RFP.   

	19
	Question:  Section J-1, Appendix 4:  The Performance Assessment Plan (DRD C-PM-04) requires a "description of the performance metrics including references to SOW paragraphs and performance standards identified in J-7 Performance Surveillance Plan."  The Preproposal Conference briefing (page 41) states that the Performance Surveillance Plan will be deleted from the final RFP.  If J-7 is deleted, where will the performance standards be defined?

	
	Answer:  The approach has been modified in the Final RFP so that the government will not propose initial metrics, but instead, utilize the metrics provided by the contractor in DRD C-PM-04 as an initial input into the development of the government surveillance plan.  The award fee plan provides categories of metrics that need to be considered.

	20
	Question:  Section L, Paragraph L.16A:  Paragraph 3 of this section defines subcontractor/team members as those having a $1 million share of work over 4 years and 9 months.  Section J-1, paragraph 1.1.1.1 and Section L.17 define subcontractor/team members as $1 million per year.  Recommend that L.16 be updated to be consistent with the other two sections.

	
	Answer:  Section L was updated to read “….over $1 million per year…”

	21
	Question:  Section L, Paragraph L.14:  The Core Contract Functions table depicts Data Integration (1.3.4) and General Requirements (3.7.1) as R levels, these should be D.  Also, SOW references are incorrect for the following:  Management and Administration should be 1.3.1.1 not 1.3.1, Configuration Status Accounting and Verification should be 1.3.1.2 not 1.3.2, Configuration Control/Change Management should be 1.3.1.3 not 1.3.3, and Data Integration should be 1.3.2 not 1.3.4.

	
	Answer:  These errors will be corrected in the Final RFP.

	22
	Question:  Section J-1, Paragraph 3.8.3.3.1.2:  states that the contractor shall "provide existing FSE/OSE/CTC hardware to CAPPS" to support cargo coordination.  Recommend changing "provide" to "identify" since the existing unpressurized hardware is not physically controlled by the Cargo Missions Contractor.

	
	Answer:   The paragraph will be changed in the final RFP to "coordinate existing FSE/OSE/CTC hardware delivery to CAPPS contractor at KSC".

	23
	Question:  Section J-1, Paragraph 3.9.3.18:  This section incorrectly states to maintain the ULC models (duplicate of Section 3.9.2.3).  This section should state to maintain the models for the hardware listed in Attachment J-1, Appendix 6, Table 3.9-A.

	
	Answer:  This will be changed in the Final RFP.  

	24
	Question:  Section J-1, Appendix 12:  It is assumed that the reviews apply to all CLINs unless noted in the "Applicable to Option" column.  Is this correct? Also, is the notation of Option 2 referencing a specific CLIN, and if so, which one?

	
	Answer:  The table will be revised to clear up confusion created by incompleteness of the table.  The column “Applicable to Option” has been renamed “Applicable to CLIN” and the applicable CLINs will be noted for each item.

	25
	Question:  Section J-1, Appendix 4:  The DRD C-SA-01 paragraph labeled CONTENT states, "The plan shall demonstrate the contractor's compliance with NFS Clause 1852.223-73 and NPG 8715.3, Appendix H."  This is a reference to the Safety & Health Plan that is also duplicated in DR C-SA-02 and should not be in DR C-SA-01.  Recommend deleting the reference.

	
	Answer:  Correct.  The reference to NFS Clause 1852.223-73 applies only to S&H Plan (DRD C-SA-02) and not Mission Assurance/Risk Management Plan (DRD C-SA-01).  DRD has been corrected to delete reference from DRD C-SA-01.

	26
	Question:  Section J-1, Appendix 6:  The Table in Attachment J-1, Appendix 6 has six line items annotated with the word "Deleted" in parentheses.  The procurements for these line items were never implemented and it is recommended that they be removed from the list.  The "Adjustable Grapple Bar Thermal Cover" on the top of page 4 was never implemented and should also be deleted from the list.  Several line items are annotated with an asterisk.  Recommend that a legend be added to the bottom of the table to define what the asterisk means.

	
	Answer:  The changes will be made in the Final RFP and the asterisks will be deleted.

	27
	Question:  Section L, Paragraph L.14B:  Request that direction be added to L.14B, TA7.  Operational Scenarios (page 19) to include the requested write-ups in Volume II, Plans and Other Data.

	
	Answer:  Instructions have been added to the proposal instructions to include Operations Scenarios in Volume 1 Mission Suitability Part 1 (instead of Volume II) with the page limitations increased for Volume 1 to account for this change,

	28
	Question:  Section L, Paragraph L.17c:  Is the "model contract" referenced in Section L-17, page 46, c.  Cost of Money for Faculties Capital, second paragraph, to be provided as part of the Cost Volume, or another volume, or as a separate document entirely? 

	
	Answer:  Yes, the model contract is a separate document. The instructions for submission will be included in the Final RFP.  The method for proposing Facilities Capital Cost of Money (FCOM) is to be included in Volume IV.

	29
	Question:  Section J-1, Appendix 6:  The following additions/corrections should be considered for the J-1, Appendix 6 Table:  ADD the following:  Adapter Plate Assembly, SMDP to GAS Beam, P/N 9008441; 6A Launch Deployment Platform, P/N 97M19650; SPDM ARM Assembly GSE, P/N 9008398; SPDM Body Assembly GSE, P/N 9008399; SSRMS FSE for Sidewall Carrier, P/N 683-96150 (CSA may be responsible for sustaining this hardware.  In the Carrier section of the table ADD:  SLP P/N 9004340-1 (qnty 5); SLP P/N 9004340-501 (qnty 3); Sidewall Carrier P/N GE 1507101 (if GSFC type SWC) or Sidewall Carrier M072-340009 (if the JSC type SWC);  Change the following:  Integrated MT/TUS Reel FSE Assembly, P/N TBD to TUS RA FSE Integrated Assembly P/N 683-96901; MT/TUS Reel FSE Installation Kit, P/N TBD to TUS RA FSE Installation Kit, P/N 683-96903; Cupola FSE, P/N TBD to PMA FSE P/N 9007974 (the PMA FSE will be used for Cupola); Delete the following:  The PVR on the list.  Replace TBD P/Ns with the following:  OPF Lift Beam Assembly GSE Mod Kit, P/N 1J00630; Integrated LDU FSE Assembly, P/N 683-96801; LDU FSE Installation Kit, P/N 683-96803; Spare Small Adapter Plate Assembly (flight unit), P/N 683-96004; Spare Medium Adapter Plate Assembly (flight unit), P/N 683-96604; Spare Large Adapter Plate Assembly (flight unit), P/N 683-96504; SPDM FSE, P/N 9008243

	
	Answer:  

Was:

We have incorporated all of the changes except PVR FSE, 

Revised(4/29/03):

We have incorporated all of the changes except PVR FSE, SLP and Side Wall Carrier P/Ns.

	30
	Question:  Section J-1, Paragraph 1.2.1.2 & Appendix 10:  The Integrated Financial Review Products DRD is noted as C-PM-01.  This should be DRD C-PM-02.

	
	Answer:  Correct, the reference in 1.2.1.2 has been changed to reference C-PM-02 instead of C-PM-01.

	31
	Question:  Section J-5, Attachment:  In the last line of the first paragraph of 2.0, request NASA to change "factors" to "criteria."  Factors should be changed bilaterally, while the government typically retains the right to change criteria.

	
	Answer:  The term “factors” will not be changed in the Final RFP.  NASA does not generally change award fee “factors” unilaterally, however we may change the Areas of Emphasis within the factors. 

	32
	Question:  Section G.14, Paragraph JSC 52.223-92 JSC Hazardous Materials Use (Dec. 1999):  The clause at (h) allows the Government to terminate for default for even a trivial or wholly technical noncompliance.  This is unnecessarily punitive and discourages proper reporting.  We recommend NASA delete (h) or replace "such" with "a serious".

	
	Answer:  The recommended changes will not be made.. This clause, part (h), states “In the event the contractor fails or refuses to comply with any aspect of this clause, such failure or refusal may be considered a material breach of this contract”.  The Government’s determination and any subsequent action would be based on the facts and circumstances of the situation(s) whereby the contractor failed to adhere to the requirements of this clause.  So this does not necessarily mean the Government would terminate for default, but the Government would have the right if it was determined to be in the interest of the Government to do so.

	33
	Question:  Section G.10 JSC 52.204-91 Security/Badging Requirements:  The clause discriminates against lawful permanent U.S. resident aliens by requiring special approvals for access to NASA facilities, which are not applied to other lawful permanent U.S. residents.  This could likely lead to allegations of discrimination against companies that comply by singling green card holders out for disparate treatment.  Request NASA either provide justification for this portion of the provision, or revise the clause to delete reference to lawful U.S. permanent resident aliens.

	
	Answer:  This clause is consistent with NASA Headquarters guidance on treatment of foreign nationals at NASA Centers.  See NASA Procedures and Guidelines (NPG) 1620.1A, Security Procedures and Guidelines; and NPG 1371.2A, Procedures and Guidelines for Processing Requests for Access to NASA by Foreign National or Representatives.

	34
	Question:  Section G.2, NSF 1852.216-76 Award Fee for service Contracts (Jun 2000):  i.  Request NASA insert "rating criteria" after "plan" in the last sentence of (b).  Factors should be modified bilaterally, though the Government typically reserves the right to unilaterally adjust subordinate criteria.  ii.  We recommend deletion of (d).  The withhold is very large and not needed to protect the Government's interests.  iii.  Consider authorizing a reasonable level of provisional award fee for the initial rating period.  See Section G.2(f)(1) and (f)(4).  iv.  Request deletion of ", as directed by the Contracting Officer" in (f)(2).  It should be immaterial to the Government how repayment occurs, so long as repayment is made.

	
	Answer:  i. The Government does not consider this to be necessary. The clause talks to the Award Fee ‘Plan” and within the plan (per release of the Final RFP) it will talk about “criteria” instead of “factors” in accordance with the corrections made in question #31 (see question and answer #31).  The term “factor” is not used in the last sentence of G.2(b) ii. G.2(d) is necessary to protect the Government’s interest, is not unreasonable, and there is nothing that is stated in the clause that says provisional fee will definitely be withheld by the Government – the clause states “...... the Contracting Officer “may” direct a withholding of further payment of award fee until a reserve has been set aside in an amount that the Contracting Officer considers necessary to protect the Government’s interest.” G.2(b) further states “this reserve shall not exceed 15 percent of the total potential award fee”.  iii.  The Government will take this under consideration, and if the Government decides to authorize any payment of provisional fee for the initial award fee period that change will be reflected in the final RFP release.  iv..This will not be deleted.  The Contracting Officer will direct how repayment occurs under (f)(2) in order to ensure that the Government’s interests are protected.    

	35
	Question:  Section H.10, Termination for Convenience of the Government (Services)(Short Form) (Apr 1984):  Pursuant to FAR 49.502(c), use of this clause may be inappropriate if the contractor will incur charges in preparation for and carrying out the contract.  The clause severely limits cost recovery following a convenience termination.  Also, the Government includes another termination provision under H.10, FAR 52.249-6.  There are no instructions for application and reconciliation of the clauses, creating a conflict.  Please clarify.

	
	Answer:  Clause 52.249-6 applies to the cost reimbursement portion of the contract. The clause 52.249-4 applies only to fixed price which for this contract is the IDIQ fixed price portion only.  The Final RFP when issued will make this distinction and the subsequent application of the clauses clear.

	36
	Question:  Section H.20, Information Incidental to Contract Administration:  This clause grants the Government unlimited rights in administrative and management data produced or developed in performance of the contract.  This appears to be an unauthorized deviation from the FAR, which grants such rights only in technical data.  The clause would affect business, legal, and management information of any form.  This is information companies typically consider competitive sensitive and crucial to the ability to compete.  Respectfully request that the clause be deleted.

	
	Answer:  . No.  This clause (H.20) is not considered contrary to the standard FAR clause Rights in Data-General.  The clause specifically excludes “information incidental to contract administration” from the definition of “data”.  H.20 addresses rights in this type of information, which is not covered by the standard FAR clause.  It does not cover a contractor’s financial information, but rather provides the Government with rights to administrative or management information created under the contract at Government expense.

	37
	Question:  Section H.21, Special Clause for Contract Changes:  Recommend that there be a limit of three (3) changes that can be added to the Contract during a calendar year under the terms of this clause, and that the impacts to all remaining options will be considered in determining whether the threshold is met.

	
	Answer:  No, the Government has considered the approach stated in comment #37, however, the best approach to setting a threshold for this clause is by the dollar value threshold as stated in the clause and by using that threshold only and not further limiting the number of changes that can be added under the terms of this clause. 

	38
	Question:  Section H.4, JSC 52.219-90 Small Business Subcontracting Goals (Jun 2001):  This goals are very aggressive, do not authorize "roll-up" (or taking credit for subcontractor effort to goals) and general do not allow counting a subcontract against all qualifying targets.  We recommend either:  i.  adjustment of goals to reasonable levels, or ii.  insertion of language allowing roll-up of credits obtained by subcontractors.  Also, allow each subcontract to be credited against each goal that could apply to it.

	
	Answer:  The goals are reasonable based on the market research that was conducted for this contract.  The goals will not be adjusted. Credit can only be taken for first tier subcontracts Any large business receiving a subcontract exceeding $500,000 must submit a subcontract plan and the SF294 report through the prime contractor. Subcontractor award dollars to small businesses may apply to more than one subcategory. 

	39
	Question:  Section H.5, JSC 52.227-91 (Limited) Release of Contractor Confidential Business Information (CBI) (May 2002):  The clause allows NASA to release contractor proprietary or confidential data, including cost data, to other NASA contractors.  There is no provision for prior approval from the disclosing contractor, or a requirement for the recipient NASA contractor to enter into a nondisclosure agreement with the disclosing contractor.  The discloser therefore has no means to verify what data is released and whether NASA properly restricts access.  The clause as written is unacceptable.  We recommend modification to read as follows.  SEE ATTACHMENT 2

	
	Answer:  The clause will not be changed.  NASA will limit release of such data only to contractors which must have such data in order to perform their contract.  The contractor receiving the data is required to have all employees sign non- disclosure agreements.

	40
	Question:  Section H.9, Contractor Commercial Use of Government Property:  The clause is intended to encourage the successful contractor to commercialize certain excess government property.  The terms of the clause, however, probably render it impossible to implement.  The clause allows the Government to take property back at any time, without cost and possibly without notice.  The Government can retain improvements without compensation.  While the Government expects consideration for each commercial deal, it requires a complete shift of all potential risk and liability to the contractor.  To provide a more equitable arrangement, we recommend the following changes: SEE ATTACHMENT 3

	
	Answer:  The changes have been considered.  The clause will not be changed.

	41
	Question:  Section H.26 and J-1 SOW, Paragraph 1.6:  Industry prefers for subcontractors to be responsible for their won export administration.  Is it acceptable to NASA under the Cargo Mission Contract, for subcontractors (in lieu of the Prime) to work directly with NASA when export coordination is required?

	
	Answer:  No. It is not acceptable for subcontractors (in lieu of the prime) to work directly with NASA when export coordination is required. All subcontractor export control activities, coordination etc., should be coordinated/worked through the Cargo Mission prime contractor.  

	42
	Question:  Section I, FAR Clauses:  1.  Request deletion of FAR 52.219-16, Liquidated Damages - Subcontracting Plan.  2.  Request addition of FAR 52.246-23, Limitation of Liability (Feb 1997)

	
	Answer:  1. The FAR Clause 52.219-16 cannot be deleted because it is required to be in the RFP if clause 52.219-9 Small Business Subcontracting Plan is in the RFP.  

2.   The clause will be added in the Final RFP.

	43
	Question:  Section J-1, Paragraph 3.10.1:  Will the CMC program have MRB authority for the hardware included in Attachment J-1, Appendix 7, Table 3.10-A?

	
	Answer:  Yes, the Cargo Mission Contractor will have responsibility for Material Review Board decisions involving the hardware in Table 3.10-A in accordance with the sustaining engineering SOW section 3.9.4 and modifications to existing hardware SOW section 3.9.5.



	44
	Question:  Section J-1, Appendix 3:  SSP 30550 (Space Station Program Robotics Systems Integration Standards Volume 1:  Robotic Accommodation Requirements) is referenced in SOW para. 3.8.5.2.1 but not listed in Appendix 3, this should be depicted as a Review responsibility.  SSP 50556 (External Stowage Platform System to User On-Orbit (Generic) Interface Control Document) is referenced in SOW para. 3.8.5.3.2 but not listed in Appendix 3, this should have Review and Input responsibilities.

	
	Answer:  SSP 50556 will be added to the list in J-1, Appendix 3.  SSP 30550 is included in J-1, Appendix 3 as an applicable document.    

	45
	Question:  Section L, Attachment L-4:  What is the preferred method for submittal (fax, email or both) of Past Performance Questionnaires?  Can specific instructions be include in Contract C Attachment L-4, which can be sent to previous customers, similar to Attachment L-4 of the RFP for Contract B?

	
	Answer:  Section L.16 has been updated with specific instructions on how to submit the past performance questionnaires, which is by e-mail (address provided) by May 23rd.  In addition, clarifications have been made both in L.16 and Attachment L-4 to clarify the information that is to be submitted.

	46
	Question:  Section J-8, Paragraphs throughout Attachment:  References to clause G.14 are incorrect based on the actual contents of Section G of the RFP.  Clause G.14 is titled "JSC 52.223-92 JSC Hazardous Materials Use (Dec 1999)."  References should be changed to G.13, entitled "Property Management of the United States on-orbit Segment (USOS) Vehicle:  On-Orbit Accountability."

	
	Answer:  This comment is correct. The references made in Section J-8 will be corrected so that section J-8 references the clause “Property Management of the United States On-Orbit Segment (USOS) Vehicle: On-Orbit Accountability”. 

	47
	Question:  Section I, Add new clause:  Request that the Government add FAR Clause 52.250-1, which provides for Indemnification under P.L. 85-804 for Unusually Hazardous Risks.

	
	Answer:  This FAR Clause will not be added to the RFP.

	48
	Question:  Is all ISS hardware to be received by the “C” contractor or will NASA decide which hardware will be received directly by the CAPPS contractor and which hardware will be received by the “C” contractor?  The first Draft SOW had the “C” Cargo Coordinator making this determination but this task requirement was deleted in the SOW in the DRFP.

	
	Answer:  Attachment J-1, paragraph 3.7.5.1.1 states that “The contractor shall coordinate with Space Shuttle Program to determine the optimum packing plan for ISS cargo in the Orbiter Middeck.  For hardware packed in the Middeck, the contractor shall coordinate with the Space Flight Operations Contract contractor for the physical integration and de-integration of “mixed” middeck bags/lockers.  The contractor shall coordinate with physical integrators and de-integrators regarding packing locations.”  The Cargo Mission contractor is packing all HTV, ATV and Russian vehicle prepacks for NASA hardware, ISS hardware for the middeck as determined in para 3.7.5.1.1 and all MPLM prepacks etc, as stated in para 3.7 and therefore the Cargo Mission contractor will need to receive all this hardware for which it is responsible for physical processing (packing).  Hardware such as RSP hard mounted hardware would be received by the CAPPS contactor.  No unpressurized hardware is received by the Cargo Mission contactor, unless it is being packed for transportation in a pressurized carrier.

	 49
	Question:  Attachment J-1, SOW paragraph 3.2; please identify which flights, and carriers on those flights that are to be subcontracted for on commercial contracts.  Which flights, if any, will already be under commercial contract with the Government and therefore not the responsibility of the “C” contractor?

	
	Answer:  There are no specific commercial contracts covered by paragraph 3.2 at this time. 

	 50
	Question:  Attachment J-1, SOW Paragraph 3.7.3.1; the last sentence states, “The Contractor must provide flexibility and capabilities to process the unique payload hardware requirements in a way that does not reduce the capability to conduct the research and development mission of the International Space Station.”  Could the Government provide more explanation or definition of what is meant by flexibility and capability? 

	
	Answer:  This was clarified by deleting these words in the Final RFP.

	 51
	Question:  Attachment J-1, SOW Paragraph 3.7.5.1.5; please clarify what is meant by “perform.”



	
	Answer:  “Perform” indicates that if an Operations and Maintenance Requirements System (OMRS) which affects hardware under the control of the Cargo Mission contractor, there might be an action required (example inspection or replacement) by the Cargo Mission contractor.  This would apply to hardware listed in Attachment J-1, Appendix 7.

	 52
	Question:  Attachment J-1, SOW Paragraph 3.7.5.1.6; does this section suggest the “C” contractor does not handle Acceptance Data Packages for all hardware, but only the “pass thru” hardware (i.e. “C” SOW implies not all ISS hardware will be processed through the “C” contractor)?

	
	Answer:  This section 3.7.5.1.6 only relates to handling of ADPs for ISS pressurized cargo at the bag, locker, or assembly level delivered by the hardware provider/processor.  It does not refer to ADPs for all ISS hardware processed through “C” Contractor.  Refer to other sections in the SOW for ADPs related to other hardware under the SOW.

	 53
	Question:  There are overlaps between the scope of “C’s” SOW and the CAPPS contract in regards to MPLM “prepack” of bags, trays, and other stowage accommodations; tracking life limited components (3.9.3.16); life limited hardware stowage (3.9.4.14); logistics for stowage accommodations (3.10.1); and maintenance and repair (3.10.2).  Will these overlaps with the CAPPS contract be resolved, or if the overlap is necessary, please clarify if the “C” contractor is to price this service or assume CAPPS will provide this service.

	
	Answer:  3.9.3.16  There is no overlapping effort with the CAPPS contract.  The CAPPS contractor will continue to record limited life updates regarding ground operations.  The Cargo Mission  contractor shall be responsible to integrate the overall limited life usage and update in the hardware record.  3.9.4.14  For paragraph 3.9.4.14 there is currently not an overlapping activity with the CAPPS contract.  For paragraphs 3.10.1 and 3.10.2 the work presently under CAPPS will be discontinued and picked up by the Cargo Mission contractor.

	 54
	Question:  DRD’s C-PC-02 and C-PC-06 references NASA NPD 9501.3, which requires a full earned value system, but the NFS clauses (1852.242-74 & 75) implementing an Earned Value Management System are not found in Section I or L.

	
	Answer:    The ISS Program requires Earned Value Management  There are two approaches for the contractor to comply with the requirement for earned value management. First, the Contractor may propose a modified earned value as described in NPD 9501.3A. Modified earned value is a precise management control system that complies with the criteria identified as “Modified Criteria” in the NPD and complies with the requirements of PC-02, Modified Cost Performance Report. Further, the requirements and formats specified by PC-02, Modified Cost Performance Report, are suitable for modified earned value management and reporting. Secondly, a contractor may propose a formal, certified earned value system that also meets the requirements of NPD 9501.3A. 

Because a contractor may be compliant with the requirements for earned value management using a modified earned value approach (in accordance with NPD9501.3A), clause 1852.242-76, Modified Cost Performance Report, will be included in both the Final RFP and resultant contract and provision 1852.242-77 Modified Cost Performance Plans will be included in Section L of the Final RFP. 

If a company offers in its proposal, a formal, certified earned value system and that company makes the competitive range, provision 1852.242-75, Earned Value Management System will be added to the model contract and 1852.242-76 Modified Cost Performance Report will be deleted during competitive range discussions and the contractor shall reflect that change in its final offer.

	 55
	Question:  DRD C-SA-03; Shouldn’t the Monthly Safety and Health Metrics report be a Type 3, not a Type 2, deliverable?

	
	Answer:  Yes.  The Monthly S&H Metrics is a Type 3 DRD.  The DRD will be modified in the Final RFP to reflect the specification.

	 56
	Question:  DRD C-SA-04 cites an OSHA web site for compliance as to form and content of the self-evaluation.  Referencing an external web site for requirements could lead to possible scope changes driven by the external agency without coordination or awareness by the contract or NASA that the requirement has changed.

	
	Answer:  If the contractor is OSHA VPP certified, then following the self-evaluation format specified should not be a problem.  However, under this contract, the contractor is not required to be OSHA VPP certified, therefore, the reference to the OSHA web site is for guidance since NASA follows the OSHA VPP format and requirements.   

	57
	Question:  Section L.11, Paragraph C; KSC On-Site Floor space.  Please clarify what is meant by “no additional floor space is allocated other than what is available in foam cutting, packing and trash facilities…”   These facilities are the responsibility of the CAPPS contractor currently.  Are these facilities transitioning to the “C” contractor, or if space being made available to the “C” contractor, how much space will be made available?

	
	Answer:  These facilities are available as government provided facilities as defined by Attachment J-1, Appendix 9.  Additional information is available in the technical library (Reference: Kennedy Space Center Facility Layout for Cargo Mission Contract, Packing Facility Video).

	58
	Question:  Section L.14, CORE Contract Function Table.  Please clarify how NASA would like the offeror to address SOW requirements that are contained in paragraphs that are at the same section level but not included in the table.  Of particular concern is the requirement to ensure consistency and linkage between the resource tables and the pricing volume.  For example, paragraph 3.7.5 is labeled R and paragraphs 3.7.5.5, 3.7.5.6, 3.7.5.7 and 3.7.5.9 each are labeled D in the table.  Should the resource table for the roll-up of 3.7.5 include the resources required, if any, for 3.7.5.8 which is not referenced?

	
	Answer:  The example given above for 3.7.5.8 is correct.  The resource table will be updated in the Final RFP.

	59
	Question:  NSF 1852.223-73 is called out in DRD C-SA-01 & C-SA-02 but not in appropriate Attachment J-1, SOW paragraphs 2.1.1 and 2.1.5.  This NSF is also not listed in Section I.

	
	Answer:  Reference is only called out in applicable DRDs and therefore, not needed to be called out also in SOW.  SOW refers to the applicable DRD.  NFS 1852.223-73 is a provision and is correctly listed in Section L and should not be listed in Section I  This provision should only be referenced in DRD C-SA-02

	60
	Question:  Section L.16B, Paragraph 1 requires offerors to provide statements of past performance for the contracts identified above (L.16 Section A).  Does this imply that statements provided for the remainder of Section L.16 (Section B paragraphs 2 & 3 and Sections C &D) are only required for contracts specified in Section A as well?

	
	Answer:  No.  For clarification the following changes have been made:  Section L.16B, 1st paragraph: “Offerors are to provide a statement of their past safety performance on contracts identified in Section L.16 paragraph A.”  Section L.16C, 1st paragraph:  “Each offeror shall provide copies of any Quality Management System (QMS) certifications it has received in the past 3 years.”  Section L.16D, 1st paragraph:  “Offerors are to provide a statement of the company’s past export control compliance in the past 5 years.”  

	61
	Question:  Section L.16B, Paragraph 3:  Are all references to health insurance in this paragraph specific to the company’s workers’ compensation program?  This is very clear in the 1st sentence, but the 6th sentence refers to liability and lawsuit history related to safety and health performance.  Are workers’ benefits (medical and dental insurance) excluded from these criteria?

	
	Answer:  Yes, all references to health insurance are specific to the company’s workers’ compensation program.  This should also include providing outstanding claims (both unprocessed and disputed) of workers’ benefits (medical and dental insurance).  Therefore, workers’ benefits (medical and dental) are not excluded from these criteria.

	62
	Question:  Section L. 16B, Paragraph 3:  Near the end of this paragraph the term “self insured” is used.  Does this term mean “state-certified, self insured” or are these other criteria?  

	
	Answer:  No, self-insured is not another criteria.  If the company is self-insured, then the contractor must indicate including if “state-certified, self-insured” or any self insured situation.

	63
	Question:  Section L.16B, Paragraph 3:  The 3rd sentence requests the offeror to authorize their insurance carriers to answer questions asked by the government.  What types of questions are likely to be asked?  Can the government specify a single person or department in which to provide data from the insurance carriers?

	
	Answer:  1)  As stated, the Government may ask about the offeror’s statements in its proposal about past safety and health performance.  2)  The Government asks that a point of contact be provided for each insurance carrier.  A single point of contact on the Government side will not be provided. 

	64
	Question:  Section L.16B, Paragraph 3:  This paragraph states that the insurance carrier of the offeror shall provide a certification letter.  Previous solicitations have requested a proof of insurance.  Is the certification letter serving this purpose or is other data being requested in this letter?

	
	Answer:  The certification letter can serve this purpose of proof of insurance, however, the certification letter must be from the underwriting company directly to NASA, not from the contractor.

	65
	Question:  Section J-1, Paragraph 1.2.2.2:  Do daily and weekly updates for tasks defined by NASA refer to the Daily Space Station Review (DSSR) meeting?  Request clarification on whether schedules will be required to be updated and submitted daily on a regular basis.

	
	Answer:  Yes, the daily status is in reference to the DSSR.  The weekly status is in reference to statusing the NASA technical interfaces to the contractor.  Schedules are required to be updated 3 times per week for the DSSR and weekly for the technical interfaces.  Schedules are to be updated every other week to support the Integrated Program Schedules Panel. 

	66
	Question:  Section J-1, Paragraph 1.2.2.6:  Will Common Schedules Database (CSD) be the existing Artemis database?  How should the bidder plan to support the CSD?  Might it be web-based?

	
	Answer:  Yes, the CSD will be the existing Artemis database.  The offeror’s plan to interface with the CSD should be reflected in the offeror’s technical approach.  The CSD is not planned to  be web-based.

	67
	Question:  Section J-1, Paragraph 1.2.2.7:  Paragraph requires contractor to “…perform schedule risk assessments that can be integrated into the overall program schedule risk assessment.”  What risk software is being used by the program.

	
	Answer:  The software being used by the ISS Program is called IRMA – ISS Risk Management Application and  will be described in the Final RFP in section J-1, Appendix 5.

	68
	Question:  Section J-1, Paragraph 1.1.1.1:  The DRFP defines “Major subcontractor and vendors” as those subcontractors who exceed $1 Million dollars in annual cost to the prime contractor.”  Recommend raising the definition of “Major subcontractor and vendor” to a level exceeding $2 million in annual cost to the prime contractor (approximately 5% of the annual expenditures), and requiring subcontractors between $1 Million and $2 Million in cost to the prime to submit weekly hours and dollars cost reporting.

Flowing down full EVMS requirements to the major subcontractors valued at $1M or greater, will add unnecessary cost to the Cargo Missions effort.  Effective cost management and control can be effected with the requirement for subcontractors valued at between $1 Million and $2 Million to provide weekly hour and dollars reporting, in lieu of full EVMS reporting.

	
	Answer:  We have reviewed the recommendation, however based on the estimated value of this contract that the $1M value for major subcontractors and vendors is appropriate and reasonable. The $1M value for major subcontractors and vendors remains unchanged as do the other requirements in section J-1, paragraph 1.1.1.1.

	69
	Question:  Section H, Paragraph H.5 (c):  In order to protect company data, request that this clause be amended in subparagraph C to include the underlined words as indicated “…CBI under subparagraphs (1) or (2) only pursuant to non-disclosure agreements signed by the assisting contractor or subcontractor, and their individual employees who may require access to the CBI to perform the assisting contract and the existence of appropriate firewalls.”

	
	Answer:  The underlined sentence will not be added to the clause. 

	70
	Question:  Clause H.22, Assignment of Existing Subcontracts from the ISS Prime Contract

Reassignment of stated subcontract to the Cargo Mission Contract is warranted as described.  As the responsibility for performance of this subcontract is to potentially affect the performance rating of the Cargo Mission Contractor, it is prudent for the Cargo Mission Prime Contractor to

oversee this handover with discrete progress measurements related to the expected completion and delivery of the supplies and services from the subcontractor.  We respectfully request NASA to establish an audit and

transition period (post-award where the Cargo Mission Contractor, NASA, and the ISS Prime Contractor conduct a performance and program audit of the supplies and services and then allow the Cargo Mission Prime Contractor to propose programmatic and/or technical changes related to this subcontractor procurement.  This is important to ensure that the contracted goods and

services will meet all contractual requirements and that fulfillment of these requirements will not place the Cargo Prime Contractor at risk of default.  Will NASA acknowledge that this audit process is necessary and include NASA's intent to establish the same in the final RFP?

	
	Answer:  

Was:

NASA does acknowledge that some type of audit process for the subcontract(s) being assigned to the Cargo Mission contractor is needed so that the status and condition of this subcontract(s) is fully known to the parties.  The intent of this clause is for the Cargo Mission contractor to manage this subcontract(s). The intent certainly is not to penalize the Cargo Mission contractor for problems that may have occurred with the assigned subcontract(s) prior to the actual assignment to the Cargo Mission Contractor.  This clause will address the Government’s acknowledgement of the need for some type of audit process in the Final RFP Release.  Offerors should note that the clause as written in the Draft RFP includes 1 subcontract, however there may or may not be more subcontracts under this clause when the Final RFP is released.

Revised(4/29/03):

There is no need to implement the recommendation since the clause H.22 is deleted from RFP.    

	 71
	Question:  Can you please clarify what the scope of the supply is?  Support of Mission Planning, Cargo Coordination, Stowage Integration, Analytical Integration, Physical Process, On Orbit Operation, Sustaining Engineering Management, Integration of Commercial Carriers and Services.  This description is too vague to submit a proposal.  We used the hyperlink in the solicitation itself, we assumed that you would have a solicitation for NASA with this characteristics, the questions is related to the scope of supply, the paragraph enclosed is a summary of the solicitation {no paragraph was enclosed}.

	
	Answer:  As this question is unclear and the paragraph stated was not in the enclosure, we are providing the best answer we can given the unclear nature of the question: The scope of work for this contract is identified in C.1. Further details related to scope are set forth in Draft RFP Sections J-1, J-2, and B.2. Each of the areas in the above question and the detailed scope of those areas is identified and detailed in contract section J-1 “Statement of Work” for the Cargo Mission Contract”.

	72
	Question:  Attachment J-1, Page 8, Section 1.2.1.1:  Section states that the “contractor shall remain flexible” in their reporting products etc.  As currently presented, this section provides inadequate information to perform a formal pricing.  Please provide sufficient detail to price.

	
	Answer:  In the Final RFP, this particular sentence in 1.2.1.1 (as referenced in the question) will either be rewritten so that it is specific and detailed enough for offeror’s to price or deleted altogether. 

	73
	Question:  Attachment J-1, Sections 1.3.1.2.2 (page 11) and 2.9.1 (Page 21):  These paragraphs include requirements associated with ATV and HTV.  Additional ATV and HTV requirements are identified in Attachment J-2 (Priced Options).  Should not all ATV and HTV requirements be collocated? 

	
	Answer:  Yes.  HTV and ATV requirements have moved to Attachment J-2 in the final RFP.

	74
	Question:  Attachment J-1, Page 14, Section 1.5:  As currently presented, this section provides inadequate information to perform a formal pricing.  Please provide sufficient detail to price.

	
	Answer:  Paragraph 1.5 has been deleted in the Final RFP.



	75
	Question:  Attachment J-1, Page 15, Section 2.1.2:  The JSC community has spent substantial resources developing the ISO 9001-2000 standard.  This section requires contractors to develop and maintain an additional quality management system.  Does the significant additional cost associated with this requirement provide sufficient benefit to the government?

	
	Answer:  The aerospace industry, including international community, is adopting AS 9100 which is ISO 9001-2000 updated for aerospace applications.  This is to be adopted for all new contracts per direction from NASA Headquarters .  

	76
	Question:  Attachment J-1, Page 26, Section 3.7 (and subsections):  Section does not define any contractor requirement for participating in the post-mission flight crew debrief process for pressurized cargo.  Please provide any relevant requirements.

	
	Answer:  Participation in post-mission flight crew debriefs for pressurized cargos is a contract requirement.  Attachment J-1 will be updated as follows:  

"3.7.1.3
The contractor shall participate in increment and ISS Shuttle flight crew debriefs addressing pressurized cargoes including the submittal of questions, attendance at appropriate debrief sessions, and delivery of written synopses of pressurized cargo debrief results to the NASA Cargo Integration Office, Increment Management Team, and Launch Package Team."

	77
	Question:  Attachment J-1, Page 26, Section 3.7 (and subsections):  Section does not define any contractor requirement for participating in the flight crew training process for pressurized cargo.  Please provide any relevant requirements.   

	
	Answer:  This contractor is not required to participate in flight crew training for pressurized cargo.  Nominally, crew training events associated with pressurized cargo activities are the responsibility of the NASA JSC Mission Operations Directorate (MOD);  products developed by this contractor are used by MOD to develop flight operations products, and then MOD uses the flight operations products for crew training.

	78
	Question:  Attachment J-1, Page 26, Section 3.7 (and subsections):  Section does not define any contractor requirement for participating in ASA ground or flight safety reviews for pressurized cargo.  Please provide any relevant requirement.

	
	Answer:  SOW paragraph 3.7.2.5.8 has been revised to add “participation by contractor in ground and flight safety reviews, ISSP boards and panels and working groups.”

	79
	Question:  Attachment J-1, Page 31, Section 3.7.4.1.1:  Section lists EXPRESS Rack and ETR as Utilization racks for which the contractor will be responsible in terms of their internal stowage mass properties.  Section 3.7.4.2.1, Page 32, lists these same two types of racks for cargo layout.  Is the contractor also responsible for integrating stowage into other Utilization racks that are not EXPRESS or ETR?

	
	Answer:  No.  The other type of Utilization racks are specially outfitted, research facility ISPRs, such as the Human Research Facility (HRF) and the Window Observational Research Facility (WORF); these racks are the responsibility of the NASA Payloads Office 

	80
	Question:  Attachment J-1, Page 33, Section 3.7.4.5:  As currently presented, this section provides inadequate information to do a formal pricing.  Please provide sufficient detail to price.

	
	Answer:  The additional data to support pricing is located in RFP Attachment J-1, Appendix 10 Work Load Indicators, under section 3.7.4.5.  The Magnitude and Schedule data of section 3.7.4.5 has been updated as follows:  FROM:  Magnitude - Assume monthly 1 hour meetings and 2 TIMs (one week) per year, 1 international travel.  Schedule - Support at approximately L-18 months for first flight ATV and HTV.  TO:  Magnitude - Assume monthly 1 hour meetings from L-24 to L-12 months and once every 2 weeks from L-12 months to launch plus 2 TIMs (one week) per year, 1 international travel.  Schedule - Support at approximately L-24 months for first flight ATV and HTV. 

	81
	Question:  Attachment J-1, Pages 38-39, Section 3.7.5.7:  Section states that Bench Reviews shall be in accordance with the GGR&C document.  In the GGR&C, an exception to Flight Crew review is made for items to be launched in Progress.  Will this exception also apply to items launched on Soyuz, ATV, and/or HTV?  Please clarify. 

	
	Answer:  The exception does not apply to the ATV, to the HTV, and to US cargos flown in the Soyuz.  Bench Reviews will be conducted for all cargos flown in ATV and HTV (if the options are exercised) and for US cargos flown in the Soyuz.

	82
	Question:  Attachment J-1, Page 40, Section 3.7.6.1:  Section is stated to apply only to ISS MPLM flights.  This should be expanded to cover ISS non-MPLM flights where the contractor must receive ISS hardware returned in the Orbiter middeck, or another section 3.7.6.2 should be added to cover this.

	
	Answer:  Attachment J-1, section 3.7.6.1 will be modified as follows:  FROM:  De-integration and Disposition of hardware:  For each ISS Multi-Purpose Logistics Module (MPLM) flight, the contractor shall de-integrate cargo returned in the MPLM and disposition the hardware according to the flight specific Return Manifest Disposition Plan (RMDP) Appendices.  TO:  For each ISS Shuttle flight, the contractor shall de-integrate and disposition ISS hardware at the bag/tray level according to the flight specific RMDP Appendices.

	83
	Question:  Attachment J-1, Page 41, Section 3.7.7:  Section anticipates development of FSE/GSE for installation of hardware onto a RSP, but not for any other application.  If there are other potential pressurized cargo FSE/GSE applications for which hardware development may be required, please add them to the scope of this section.

	
	Answer:  Attachment J-1, section 3.7.7 will be modified as follows:  FROM:  To accomplish the responsibilities within this SOW, the contractor shall design and manufacture Flight Support Equipment (FSE), Ground Support Equipment (GSE) and factory equipment to hard-mount ISS hardware to Resupply Stowage Platforms as approved by the government via an IDIQ delivery order.

TO:  To accomplish the responsibilities within this SOW, the contractor shall design and manufacture Flight Support Equipment (FSE), Ground Support Equipment (GSE) and factory equipment to hard-mount ISS hardware in pressurized compartments or modules as approved by the government via an IDIQ delivery order.

	84
	Question:  Attachment J-1, Page 73, Section 3.9.5:  All tasks associated with this section are assumed to be on IDIQ tasks.  Is this a correct assumption?

	
	Answer:  Yes.  In the Final RFP this has been clarified.



	85
	Question:    Attachment J-1, Page 73, Section 3.10.4:  Section requires controlled storage areas, which appears to mean for all hardware being received, stored, or processed under this SOW.  Are there any requirements for special storage conditions (e.g. hazardous materials)?

	
	Answer:  There are no requirements for special storage conditions.

	86
	Question:  Attachment J-1, Appendix 9:  Please provide details on the location of the JSC onsite desk facilities.  Are all desks in one building location of the JSC onsite desk facilities.  Are all desks in one building (i.e. 4S) or are some of the desk spaces at JSC located in other facilities.

	
	Answer:  This is not finalized but for proposal purposes assume all on-site JSC desks are located in one building.  Section L will be updated in the Final RFP. 

	87
	Question:  Section G.6, NFS 1852.245-73 Financial Reporting of NASA Property in the custody of Contractors (Aug 2001):  How can contractors price the requirement for “any supplemental instructions for the current reporting period issued by NASA?”  What are the boundaries for pricing this requirement?

	
	Answer:  Offerors should price this based on the requirements stated in the clause. The portion that states …any supplemental instructions for the current reporting period issued by NASA…” is not going to materially or drastically change the overall requirements of the clause.  

	88
	Question:  Section G.8 and G.9, Pages 9-11:  These sections list JSC and KSC provided services, respectively, that are offered to the CMC contractor.  The lists differ and this raises an uncertainty about which of the listed services offered at KSC are actually not available at JSC (e.g. NEMS), and vice versa.  Could the two lists be compared and modified, if appropriate, to clarify the differences in services offered at the two centers?

	
	Answer:  Prior to the Final RFP release, the lists will be compared and modified to clarify the differences.

	89
	Question:  Sections H.5, Release of Contractor Confidential Business Information (CBI) and H.20, Information Incidental to Contract Administration, H.20, Information Incidental to Contract Administration:  It is our understanding that NASA Headquarters (Tom Luedke) is issuing new direction to all NASA centers regarding NASA’s rights to disclose Confidential Business Information of contractors.  FAR 3.104-4, the Privacy Act (5 U.S.C.55a), and the Trade Secrets Act (18 U.S.C 1905) protect the contractors from competitive harm.  Would NASA consider deletion or modification of Clauses H.5 and H.20? 

	
	Answer:  Both of these clauses will remain in the RFP as they are, however if NASA Headquarters issues policy guidance on deleting and replacing one or both of these clauses with new clauses or modifying one or both of these clauses, JSC will implement those revisions or changes when and as appropriate.

	90
	Question:  Section L, Attachment L-4, page 8:  Includes a past performance questionnaire in which a respondent is asked specific questions relating to the requestor’s performance.  Included in the questionnaire are questions concerning Food Systems Development and Space Medicine, etc.  What is the relevance of these questions to the Cargo Mission contract?

	
	Answer:  Attachment L-4 will be modified for the Final RFP.

	91
	Question:  Request that Section L include a table on resource loading for the contract.  Section L, Table L-2, SOW Proposal Level of Detail and Reference FTE’s, is provided in the Program Integration & Control DRFP.  The approach to Cargo Mission is similar in that it includes effort from a variety of different contracts.  Including a similar table in Section L, Cargo Mission DRFP will allow the responder to provide a more informed offer and will greatly facilitate competition.

	
	Answer:  In the Final RFP, there will be some reference to resource loading included.  The exact format and level of detail is undecided at this time.

	92
	Question A:  Section J-1, paragraph 1.3.2.2; 3.7; 3.7.4.1.2, and 3.7.4.2.2:  The referenced paragraphs address activities that may require the Cargo Missions Contractor to establish relationships with RSA and other Russian Firms (Energia).  Please provide guidance as to the extent to which contractors may subcontract work under the proposed Cargo Mission contract to Russian firms and charge those costs back to NASA under the Cargo Missions contract

	
	Answer:  TBD

	93
	Question:  In response to Section L.17, page 37 requirements for an Excel Pricing Model, we would like to request a meeting with the appropriate NASA Cost personnel, in order to review our current EPM for compliance with the DRFP requirements.  During the Bidder’s Conference, the possibility of having a workshop was discussed.  A workshop or individual meeting would be very helpful in assuring that we’re building a model that is compliant with the EPM that the Government is requesting.  Can this be scheduled before the Final RFP is released?

	
	Answer:  No, there is not an opportunity for a meeting to review the EPM before the Final RFP is released. The EPM requirements and instructions have been simplified and clarified in the Final RFP.

	94
	Question:  Section L.14, page 23 – Core Contract Functions.  There are several SOW paragraphs with work content that are not reflected in the Core Contract Functions Table.  Should the paragraphs listed below be included in the table and should the page count in the Volume I, Part 2 be increased to allow for their inclusion?  If not, how should the costs associated with these tasks be included in the proposal?  (SEE ATTACHMENT 4)

	
	Answer:  The Core Contract Functions table is being revised in its entirety for the Final RFP.

	95
	Question:  Section I, Addition of FAR Clause:  Will Government entertain considering “PL 85-804 Indemnification Against Unusually Hazardous Risks” subsequent to award if the Contractor can provide justification for incorporation of this clause (Ref. FAR Clause 52.250-1)?

	
	Answer:  Yes, but be advised the contractor will first have to articulate and support that certain specific activities under the Cargo Mission contract identified by the contractor are “unusually hazardous risks” such that insurance to cover these risks could not be obtained or could only be obtained at prohibitive rates.  Second, the indemnification would only be approved if taking such an action could be demonstrated to facilitate the national defense.

	96
	Question A:  Section H, paragraph H.14-A:  Request that the Government confirm that the contractor can add a list of data within this clause that specifies what software or data is provided with less than unlimited rights, if needed.  Recommend adding a sentence to the end,  “The following software or technical data has limited rights:  (The Contractor must list existing hardware/software with less than unlimited rights).”

	
	Answer A: The Government confirms that the contractor can add a list of data within this clause that specifies software and data that is being provided with less than unlimited rights. The recommended sentence will not be added to the clause.  There is no specific requirement of where or how this list of software/data may be provided, except that it be prior to incorporation.

	
	Question B:  Section H, paragraph H.14-B:  Add as lead to paragraph, “Except as provided pursuant to A above,” Also, request that the words “restrictive legends” be changed to “legends that restrict the government”

	
	Answer: These two changes will not be added because the language “except as provided pursuant to A above” would totally defeat the purpose of H.14A. Also, there is no rationale for changing the words “restrictive legends” to “legends that restrict the government” because there may be other entities that a contractor might want to restrict in addition to the government.

	97
	Question:  Section H, paragraph H.16-B and addition of H.16-C:  Modify to add words as indicated “…the Government shall require the recipient to provide an appropriate firewall and sign an agreement,…”;  Request the addition of subparagraph (C):  “C.  The Government shall in all cases provide the contractor with written notification of all entities who receive the proprietary information of the contractor.”

	
	Answer:  Answered in Amendment 004



	98
	Question:  Section H, paragraph H.18-A:  Request modification of the last sentence to read “…which was created under in connection with this contract.”

	
	Answer:  Agree

	99
	Question:  Section J-6:  In the DRFP package, there is an Attachment J-6 Subcontracting Plan title page.  Is this the Small Business/Small Disadvantaged Business Subcontracting Plan?

	
	Answer:  Yes, This is the Small Business Subcontracting Plan that the offeror shall provide in accordance with provision L.19A Management Approach, MA8.

	100
	Question:  Section H, paragraph H.25 and J-1 Appendix 4 DRD C-PM-08:  Request deletion of DRD C-PM-08 and clause H-25 Reprocurement Data Package due to it’s content being a major cost driver, as well as issues with proprietary data.

	
	Answer: The DRD and clause will not be deleted. This information is absolutely necessary for the Government to obtain information necessary for reprocurement activities.

	101
	Question:  Section J-1, Appendix 4:  Will there be a separate DRD for the “Quarterly Export Report” as identified in the Export Control Plan, DRD C-II-01?

	
	Answer:  No. The format and content of the Quarterly Export Report is something that offerors need to describe as part of their Export Control Plan.

	102
	Question:  Section G, paragraph G.3:  Request addition to G.3 a new subsection (f) that states, “The Contractor is authorized to provide Cost Voucher every 2 weeks, and provisional fee vouchers every 2 weeks.”

	
	Answer:  The suggested language will not be added to the clause. Offerors shall adhere to the clause requirements as set forth in the Final RFP.

	103
	Question:  Section I, paragraph I.1-I:  Request that Alternate I be added to the following clause, “52.215-21, Requirements for Cost or Pricing Data or information other than Cost or Pricing data – Modifications and Alternate II and Alternate III”.

	
	Answer: No, Alternate I to 52.215-21 will not be added. The format in Table 15-2 should be followed when pricing modifications

	104
	Question:  Section G, paragraph G.1, page 1:  Recommend deletion of NASA FAR SUPPLEMENT CLAUSE 1852.242.71 (Travel Outside the United States).  This clause requires the contractor to submit requests to the CO 30 days in advance of the trip.  There may be occasions when this will not be possible.

	
	Answer:  No.  The clause will remain in the contract.  If the contractor is traveling at government direction and the notification is less than 30 days, the contractor will not be penalized.

	105
	Question:  Attachment J-2, paragraph 6.2.4  Transfer List/Procedure Development.  The text of this paragraph seems more suited to shipping instead of procedure development.  Text similar to section 5.2.4 is expected in this section instead of what is written in the draft RFP.  Is the current text of 6.2.4 correct?  If not, how should it read?

	
	Answer:  The draft RFP text for paragraph 6.2.4 was incorrect and has been corrected in the final RFP.  The new 6.2.4 text is similar to the 5.2.4 text.

	106
	Question:  Section L, Paragraph L.10.F, states that the minimum font size for Tables, Charts, Graphs, Plans, Figures, Diagrams, Schematics is only 10.  Normally, we are allowed to go down to 8 for various figures.  Would NASA decrease the stipulated font size in Tables, Charts, Graphs, Plans, Figures, etc., from 10 to 8?

	
	Answer:  No.



	107
	Question:  In Table L-10.1, Proposal Page Limitations, the Total Compensation Plan (In Volume II, Plans and Other Data) is limited to 10 pages.  We believe the 10-page limitation is too restrictive.  The extent of the Total Compensation Plan requirements indicates that additional page count is required.  To ensure that sufficient detail is given for the prime and subcontractors to meet the requirements and to ensure this compliance, a bidder’s plan may need to exceed the 10-page limit.  Recommend increasing the 10-page limitation to 30 pages.

	
	Answer:  Based on our past experience 10 pages should be reasonable, however the Government will raise the page limitation for the TCP to 15 pages which will be reflected in the Final RFP. 

Revised answer in Amendment 008:

The page limitation for the Total Compensation Plan has been revised to no limit – See RFP Amendment #8, item b.

	108
	Question:  Section H.20, Information Incidental to Contract Administration.  Based on NASA’s response to question number 36, there is still some uncertainty of the intent of this clause.  Can you please explain NASA’s perceived need and for costing purposes, define the quantity and frequency of requesting this data.

	
	Answer:  The issue addressed by H.20 stems from the exclusion of "data incidental to contract administration" in the definition of "data" in the "Rights in Data-General" clause.  The result is that rights to such information are not covered.  Accordingly, H.20 makes it clear that the Government has unlimited rights in administrative and management information to the extent it was developed for the performance of the contract or first produced in the performance of the contract.  It excludes financial information.  Such information is specifically developed for the contract, and should be available to the Government in order to administer the contract, or for future use in follow-on or other work. The quantity and frequency of requesting this data can’t be predicted in advance, but this should have negligible, if any, impact for costing purposes. 


	109
	Question A:  Regarding SOW paragraph 1.2.1.1 Contract Financial System:  The SOW requires the contractor to provide a financial system that “tracks resources by fund source, mission, and contract Work Breakdown Structure (WBS)…”  Please clarify what is meant by fund source and mission.

	
	Answer A:  The response to this question is included in Amendment 1 to the Final RFP.

	
	Question B:  The flight schedule lists in Section J-1, Appendix 11, page 2 and page 4 identifies a different frequency and mix (Shuttle, Soyuz, Progress, ATV, HTV) of flights.  Which flight schedule should be used by offerors to estimate cost?  Should we use Page 2 through January 2008, then page 4 for the remaining time, or should we use the template on Page 4 for all years.  Recommendation:  To ensure offeror’s cost estimates are based on the same flight schedule, we recommend that NASA specify use of the list on Page 4.

	
	Answer B:   In the Final RFP the Flight schedule has been clarified.




ATTACHMENT 1

Response To Question Number 1

"3.0     CARGO MISSION MANAGEMENT

The contractor shall accomplish all tasks contained in this SOW in accordance with Program documents: 

SSP 50110 Multi-Increment Manifest Document; 

SSP 54100 Increment Definition and Requirements Document Flight Program, 

SSP 541PP Increment Definition and Requirements Document for Planning Period PP (IDRD PP) where "PP" indicates the Planning Period number; 

SSP 541PP-ANX 1 Annex 1, Increment Definition and Requirements Document for Planning Period, Annex 1 Manifest and the interim weekly updates; 

SSP 50502 International Space Station Hardware Preflight Imagery Requirements

SSP 50521 Return, Processing, Distribution and Archiving of Imagery Products from the International Space Station, section 5

SSP 541PP-ANX 3 Increment Definition and Requirements Document Annex 3 Imagery 

SSP 50261-01 Generic Groundrules, Requirements and Constraints Part 1: Strategic and Tactical Planning; and 

NSTS 07700, Vol. 3, Flight Definition and Requirement Directive

SSP 50489  Mission Integration Templates.  

These documents are products of the Program Integration and Control Contract (PI&CC) and the Mission Integration Contract (MIC) and provide the program implementation direction for the Cargo Mission Contract (CMC).  
The contractor shall provide inputs back to the PI&CC and the MIC for discrepancies found in the above listed documents.

Cargo Mission Planning

The Program Integration and Control Contract (PI&CC) performs strategic level assessments of requirements for traffic modeling studies to provide logistics, research and development hardware for the International Space Station (ISS).  The Mission Integration Contract (MIC) performs tactical level assessments covering two-year horizons and a continuous activity for execute-level assessments of requirements. The contractor for this contract shall provide assessments of manifest and manifest options to the PI&CC and MIC, when requested by the ISSP, for the integration of these assessments into the overall ISSP planning process.  Descriptions of the strategic and tactical planning processes are in SSP 50200-01 SPIP Volume 1, section 3.7 and SSP 50200-02 SPIP Volume 2 sections 4 and 5.
The contractor shall provide assessments of ...."
--END ATTACHMENT 1—

ATTACHMENT 2

CONTINUATION: Question Number 39 

H.5  (LIMITED) RELEASE OF CONTRACTOR CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS INFORMATION (CBI).

(a) NASA may find it necessary to release information submitted by the contractor pursuant to the provisions of this contract to certain NASA support contractors.  Business information that is entitled to confidential treatment may be included in the information released to these individuals. 

(b) Possible circumstances where the Agency may release the contractor’s Confidential Business Information (CBI) include the following:

(1) To other Agency contractors and subcontractors tasked with assisting the Agency in handling and processing information and documents in the administration of Agency contracts, such as providing post-award audit support and specialized technical support to ANSA.

(2) To NASA contractors and subcontractors engaged in information systems analysis, development, operation, and maintenance, including performing data processing and management functions for the Agency.

(c) NASA recognizes it obligation to protect the contractor from competitive harm that could result from the release of such information to a competitor.  NASA will not release CBI under this clause except pursuant to non-disclosure agreements signed by the disclosing contractor and the recipient contractor and their employees who may require access to the CBI to perform their NASA contract.  NASA will also enter into a nonclosure agreement with the assisting contractor or subcontractor, and their individual employees who may require access to the CBI to perform the assisting contract.

(d) NASA’s responsibilities under the Freedom of Information Act are not affected by this clause.

(e) NASA will notify the disclosing contractor of a release of data and description of the data prior to any actual release.

ATTACHMENT 3
CONTINUATION: Question Number 40
H.9   
CONTRACTOR COMMERCIAL USE OF GOVERNMENT PROPERTY

This clause establishes procedures whereby the contractor may allow commercial customers to use the property listed in the Cargo Mission Contract Statement of Work, Attachment J-1, and enables the contractor and the government to agree to an equitable adjustment pursuant to FAR 45.4 for the use of the property identified in Attachment J-1.  This equitable adjustment shall provide the government adequate consideration for the contractor’s commercial use of the property on an “as available” basis.

A. Contents of Agreement:  The contractor and the commercial user shall document all commercial services, which the contractor intends to render using the property identified in Attachment J-1. The agreement for commercial use shall detail the scope of work for the project, the required levels of service, and any other project unique requirements with performance expectations.  The contractor and the commercial user shall also agree upon the terms and conditions for providing services to commercial customers.  

B. Outside Approvals:  The contractor shall obtain all necessary licenses and permits to perform commercial operations, including those relating to export control. 

C. Approval of Use:  The contractor shall provide its tentative agreement for commercial use, including all of the attendant business terms and conditions and proposed consideration for the government, to the Contracting Officer for review.  In addition, the contractor shall calculate the overall capacity of the property identified in Attachment J-1 that is proposed to be used in the agreement for commercial use and provide evidence there is available capacity to support the commercial use.  If the proposed agreement for commercial use involves enhancements and/or modifications to the property identified in Attachment J-1, the contractor must demonstrate that these enhancement/modifications will not interfere with the government’s use of said property.  The government will authorize the use of property identified in Attachment J-1 for commercial purposes upon determining that there is available capacity and that such use is in the government’s interest.  The contractor’s use of the property shall be limited to scope of use described in the approved agreement for commercial use.   

D. Equitable Adjustment:  The parties shall equitably adjust this contract based on the use of the property identified in Attachment J-1.  The equitable adjustment will recognize shared revenue from the sale of the available capacity, less any incurred cost, including contractor capital investments, for those commercial agreements resulting from the marketing efforts of the contractor.  NASA and the contractor may negotiate alternate payment methods (for example, direct payment, voucher credit, offset, etc) for the period of commercial use in lieu of equitable adjustments recognizing shared revenue from the sale of available capacity.

E. “As Available” Use:  The government recognizes that the contractor’s commercial services to its customers depend upon the reliability of the contractor’s access to that property.  Accordingly, the government will use reasonable efforts to mitigate conflicts with the contractor regarding its commercial use of the property identified in Attachment J-1.  Additionally, the government will make reasonable efforts to notify the contractor, in advance, of conditions which may affect its commercial use, such as, power outages and emergency or unusual facility access restrictions.  The contractor, however recognizes that the government reserves the right to exercise priority for use of its property (e.g., government payload processing would take priority over commercial services.)  In the event commercial use of the property identified in Attachment J-1 adversely effects [sic] the government operations, the Contracting Officer shall notify the contractor.  The contractor shall immediately implement any action necessary to alleviate adverse effects, to include suspension of the specific commercial use.

F. Revocation of Permission to Use:  Upon reasonable notice to the contractor, the Contracting Officer may withdraw any permission granted under this clause for commercial use of the property identified in Attachment J-1, in whole or in part, for any of the following reasons:  

(1) Termination of a relevant portion of this contract;

(2) Removal of any designated property from the category of Government-furnished property under this contract;

(3.) (1.) Actual or projected commercial use of any identified property, which may negatively affect performance under this contract; or

(4.) (2.) Revocation of permission for commercial use is in the government’s best interest.  If the Contracting Officer withdraws, in whole or in part, permission for commercial use of the property identified in Attachment J-1, the contractor shall be entitled to pursue an equitable adjustment in cost or fee under this contract so long as such equitable adjustment does not exceed that which was already obtained by the government for the particular commercial use.  In no event, shall the contractor be entitled to lost profits it might have gained from its commercial customers.  

G. Other Terms and Conditions:

(1) Unless specifically identified in the approved agreement for commercial use, the government shall not be responsible for providing any related property such as consumables, or logistics services necessary for the contractor’s commercial use of the property identified in Attachment J-1.  The government shall not be responsible for shipment of any items related to this clause.

(2) The government shall not be obligated to protect any non-NASA data related to the contractor’s commercial use of the property identified in Attachment J-1.  In recognition that the property may be located in accessible areas, the government also has no obligation to protect any data or property from viewing, photographing, or recording.

(3) The contractor’s commercial use of the property identified in Attachment J-1, as well as its access to NASA sites must fully comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations, including FAR 52.245-9, Use and Charges.  The contractor must also provide advance notice necessary to enable commercial use, such as, clearance from the government for customer access to the property and receipt of contractor’s property necessary for the commercial use.

(4) If the agreement for commercial use involves enhancements to or modifications of property identified in Attachment J-1, the government shall have the right to take ownership of any enhancements or modifications without compensation or shall have the right to require return of the property to its original configuration at the contractor’s expense and no cost to the government. 

(5) Neither the contractor nor its customers may represent in any promotional, advertising, or other material that NASA endorses any product or service provided through the commercial use of the property identified in Attachment J-1.  The contractor further agrees that NASA shall have the opportunity to review and concur in all releases including requests for information, press, and news releases arising out of or related to the commercial use of the property prior to release.

(6) The contractor shall be liable to the government, in accordance with the Government Property clause of this contract, for damage to or loss resulting from commercial use of the property identified in Attachment J-1.

(7) The contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the United States from any third party liability, including that from the contractor’s customers arising out of any aspect of the commercial use of the property identified in Attachment J-1.  

(6) The contractor shall obtain, at its own expense, insurance to cover this liability, naming the United States as an additional insured.  The amount of general aggregate liability coverage under this insurance policy shall be at a minimum of $5,000,000 for each occurrence, and in the aggregate, per year.  The contractor shall procure and maintain the insurance described above, and provide NASA with proof of insurance prior to using the property to provide commercial services.  The contractor shall notify the government whenever changes or renewals to the pertinent insurance policies occur. 

(7)  The contractor shall obtain from each customer written waivers that release the government from liability for any damage caused by government action or inaction.  These waivers shall be reflected in the agreement for commercial use.

(8)  The Contract Disputes Act of 1978 and the Disputes Clause of this contract, shall be the sole means for the contractor to file claims or seek redress for any government revocation of permission to use or alleged failure to perform any matter related to the commercial use of property identified in Attachment J-1.

ATTACHMENT 4

CONTINUATION: Question Number 94
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